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Slam Jtortatir framing laririq.

?G\BIS Society was established in the year 1859, at Ham, in the County of Stafford, for the^
purpose of collecting amateur Drawings in pen and ink, from all parts of the kingdom, to be

printed in an annual volume. The sketches are intended to illustrate the topography of Great
Britain and Ireland, the scenery, churches, manor-houses, and monastic ruins of the land with

special preference for those subjects of which there exist few, if any, published engravings.

It is obvious that numerous as are the illustrated works on topography and architecture which

yearly issue from the press, there are yet thousands of interesting subjects of which no print or

engraving can be procured.

This Society's publications, therefore, if well supported, might prove of considerable value to

the antiquarian and the archa3ologist, and usefully supplement the various architectural journals,

&c., whose funds do not admit of profuse illustration.

For the sake of reference and appropriate classification, the sketches are arranged according to

the respective dioceses in which the sketches are found
;
and it is thought probable that members

will take a special interest in getting as many illustrations as possible of the remarkable and

comparatively unknown features of their own particular neighbourhood from year to year.

Eight volumes have now been published, containing more than 250 sketches, principally of views

in England, but comprehending also subjects from Wales, Ireland, Scotland and the Continent.

The subscription is 10s. 6d. annually, for which each member receives the annual volume at

Christmas. Those who contribute sketches, which are accepted, will receive also ten copies of

each of their own drawings.

It is considered needless here to give any description of the mode of drawing in Anastatic ink.

Any. one who is desirous of a full and explicit account of the whole process may obtain it, by

post, from Mr. Cowell, Anastatic Printer, Ipswich, whose little pamphlet (price 6d.) affords all

the needful information.

At the request of several members of the Society, foreign sketches are admitted, and will be

appended at the end of the volume.

Members of the Society are requested to make the objects of the Society known among their

friends who may be interested in such subjects. Non-subscribers' sketches will not be refused,

if worthy of insertion.

All communications to be addressed to

EEV. G. E. MACKAKN"ESS, Hon. Sec.,

Dec. 1867. Ham Vicarage, Ashbourn, Derbyshire.

N.B. The issue of the present volume has been unavoidably delayed, so that it appears some

weeks later than usual. Members are requested to send their drawings earlier in
^the year. The

Secretary regrets that a smaller number of sketches were sent in this year than in former years.

It is hoped, that the volume for 1868 will shew a marked contrast in its dimensions, the Society

having received a considerable accession of members within the last few months.
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Acton, Mrs Stackhouse, Acton Scott, Shrewsbury
Allen, Miss, Frees Vicarage, Shrewsbury
Allen, Rev. James, Castlemartin Vicarage, Pembrokeshire

Allen, Chas., Esq., Tenby
Anderton, Rev. W., Bath

Bayley, W. R., Esq., Cotford House, Sidmouth

Bainbrigge, Mrs, Upton "Warren Rectory, Bromsgrove
Bainston, Miss, Rosebank, Chester

Barnes, Rev. J. Bentley, Ashbourn

Barstow, Miss F. Garrow Hill, York

Barton, Mrs. Alfred, Bishopstoke, Hants

Barton, R. Esq., Caldy Manor, Hirkenhead

Barton, Miss, Stapleton Park, Pontefract

Beckett, Mrs. Lyncombe Vale, Bath

Bell, Edwin Esq., Bishop's Well, Chislehurst, Kent

Bellairs, Rev. S. G. Goadby Rectory, Melton Mowbray
Bellairs, G: C: Esq; The Newarke, Leicester

Binney, Rev. T. Erskine., Dalkeith Palace, N.B.

Blagg, Mrs. J. W., S. Albans, Herts

Blagg, Miss, Rose Hill, Cheadle, Staffordshire

Blunt, Mrs., The Green, Ashbourn

Bonville, W. Esq
Boultbee, Rev. R. M,, Iver Grove, Uxbridge
Bowles, Rev. S. J., Bcaconsfleld

Bowles, Miss

Boycott, R. H. Esq., Stanmore Grove, Bridgenorth
Bree, Rev. W., Allesley Rectory, Coventry
Brook, Mrs., Glendower, Tenby
Erooke, Rev. J., Haughton Hall, Shiffnal

Brown,"Rev. F; Nailsea Rectory, Bristol

Brushfield, T. N. Esq, M.D. Woking
Burrard, Lady, "Walhampton, Lymington
Burton, Miss Gertrude, Abbey House. Salop

Butler, Miss, Lee House, Brighton

Gather, Miss, Newtown-limavaddy, Co. Londonderry
Campbell, Mrs, "Woodseat, Ashbourn

Caparn, Rev; W, B. Draycott, Weston S. Mare

Capron, Miss. Southwick Hall, Oundle

Carpenter, H., Esq., Albany Chambers, London
Child, Smith Esq , Stallington Hall, Stone

Cobbold, Rev. R
, Broseley Rectory

Coleridge, Right Hon. Sir John T., Heath's Court, Ottery

Coode, Miss C., Teignbridge House, Newton Abbot

Cookes, Rev. H. W., Astley Rectory, Stourport

Cooke, W. H. Esq., 42, "Wimpole Street, London

Cranston, J. Esq., Birmingham
Creed, Rev. H. K. Chedburgh Rectory, Bury S. Edmunds

Cross, Rev. S.

Crossman, Miss, Friezewood, Ridgeway, Bristol

Dawson, Arthur Finch, Esq., Barrow Hill, Ashbourn

Dawson, J. F. Esq., Ashbourn

Day, Gerard, Esq., Horsford House, Norwich

De Burgh, Mrs, West Drayton, Middlesex

Denman, Hon. Mrs, J., 17 Eaton Terrace, London

Denning, Rev.S.P., S. Andrew's College Bradfield. Reading
De Putron, Rev. P., Rodmell, Lewes

Devon, Right Hon. The Earl of, Powderham Castle, Devon

Dixon, John, Esq., Astle Hall, Congleton

Dormer, Mrs Cottrell, Rousham, Oxford

Duncombe, The Lady Harriet. Calwich, Ashbourn

Dyke, E. A. Esq., Ashbourn

Errington, Rev. J. R., Ashbourn

Evans, T. Esq., Hemel Hempstead
Evans, Miss, Stockton Rectory, Tenbury

Falkner, J. S. Esq., Freshford, Bath

Feilden, Rev. H., Langley Rectory, Derby
Feilden, Rey. 0., Whittington, Salop
Fisher, E. Esq., Overseale, Ashby-de-la-Zouch
Fox, C. H. Esq., Brislington House, Bristol

Fox, G. F. Esq., Keynsham, Bristol

Fox, Rev. R. S. Horringer Red House, Bury S. Edmunds
Freeth, G. Esq., S. Austell Cornwall

Francis, Rev. W. F., Gt. Saxham Rectory, Bury S. Edmunds
Frank, R. H. Esq., Ashbourn Hall

Fraser, Rev. W., D.C.L., Alton Vicarage, Cheadle

Furmston, Rev. E., Cockshutt, Ellesmere

Geoghagan, A. J. Esq., Hull

Gilby, Miss E. M., Charlton Kings, Cheltenham

Goodwin, Mrs., Hinchley Wood, Ashbourn

Gore-Langton, The Lady Anna, Newton Park, Bristol

Grazebrook, Geo. Esq., Oak Hill Park, Liverpool
Greenwood, Mrs, Ingerthorpe Grange, Ripley
Gresley, C. Esq., The Close, Lichfield

Hall, R. C. Esq., Corston, Bristol

Hailstone, E. Esq., F.S.A., Horton Hall, Bradford, York-
Haworth, Mrs, Derwent Bank, Malton [shire

Havers, A. Esq., Tenterden

Harris, Mrs J. H. Sorel, Torquay
Harrison, John, Esq.. Snelston Hall, Ashbourn

Hasker, Miss,. 61, Eversfied Place, S. Leonard's

Heales, A. Esq., Doctors Commons, London

Heathcote, Lady, Hursley Park, Winchester

Herbert, Master , Llanarth

Heywood, Lady, Doveleys, Ashbourn

Hickley, Captain, R.N., Ashcott, Bath

Hope, A. J. Beresford, Esq,. M.P., Bedgebury Park, Kent
Horniblow, Mrs

Hughes, Hon. Miss, Bute House, South Audley St. London

Hunt, G. Ward, Esq., M P. Wadenhoe House, Oundle

Hunt, Miss, 39, Rutland Gate, London

Irvine, Major, Killadease, Co. Fermanagh

Jackson, Rev. J, E. Leigh Delamere, Chippenham
Jones, Rev. T., Atlow, Ashbourn

Kennedy, Miss

Kinnersly, Mrs., Clough Hall, Newcastle, Staffordshire

King, W. W. Esq., 14, South Grove West, MUdmay Park,

Kynnersley, Miss, The Green, Ashbourn [London

Levett, H. W. Esq., Wells, Somerset

Llanover, The Lady, Llanover. Abergavenny
Lonsdale, Miss

Lucas, J. F. Esq., Bentley, Ashbourn

Lukis, Rev. W. C., Wath Rectory, Ripon
Luscombe, Mrs., Old Lakenham, Norwich

Lynam, C. Esq., Stoke-upon-Trent

Macaulay, Mrs., Hodnet Rectory, Market-Drayton
Mackarness, Rev. G. F., Honiton Rectory, Devonshire

Mackarness, Rev. J. R., Ham Vicarage, .Ashbourn

Mackarness, Mrs., Elstree House, Bath

Master, Rev. G. S., West Dean, Salisbury

Mellor, J. Esq., Clairville, Manchester

Meynell, Mrs., Derby
Meynell, Rev, H., Denstone Parsonage, Ashbourn

Meynell, F. Esq., Brent Moor House, Devon

Mills, Hon. Mrs., Stutton Rectory, Ipswich
Mills, Mrs., Saxham Hall, Bury 8. Edmunds

Milnes, Rev. H., Winster

Moore, Rev. H., Exeter

Moulton, S. Esq., Kingston House, Bradford-on-Ayon



Nesbitt, A. Esq., Kidbrook Park, East Grinstead

Newdigate, Rev. C., West Hallam, Derby
Nichols, J. G. Esq., 25 Parliament Street, S. W.

Oxford Union Society

Parke, W, Esq., Wolverhampton
Parkin, B. Esq, Ashbourn

Petit, Rev. J. L, Lichfield

Pitman. J. R. Esq., Bath

Plowden, C. C. Esq., Chislehurst

Popham, Miss F. L., Chilton Rectory, Hungerford

Pntchard, Mrs. J, Broseley Salop

Ravenshaw, Rev. T. F., Pewsey, Marlborough
Eawson, Mrs, Halifax

Henaud, F Esq, Lawton Hall, Lawton

.Robinson, Mrs, Frankton Grange, Ellesmere

Robinson, Rev. J. H., Churchill, near Kidderminster

Roscoe, Miss L, Knutsford

Rowland, G J. Esq, "Wolverhampton
Russell, J. Watts Esq, Ham Hall, Ashbourn

Russell, J. D. Watts Esq, Biggin, Oundle

Russell, John Watts, Esq.
Rutter, Mrs, Coton House, Wolverhampton

Sandford, Rev. H. Eaton Vicarage, Church Stretton

Selwyn, Rev. Canon, Ely
Scott, John 0. Esq, Manor House, Ham
Shirley, E. P. Esq, Eatington Park, Stratford-on-Avon

Skrine, H. W. Esq, Warleigh Manor, Bath

Smith, Rev. W. Anderton, Bath

Smith, H. Esq., Bridgenorth

Spencer, Rev: C. C. Benefield Rectory. Oundle

Spode, Mrs, Hawkesyard Park, Rugeley

Strickland, Mrs H:, Jardine Hall, Lockerbie, N B
Sutcliffe, Mrs, Keele Parsonage, Newcastle, Staffordshir*

Swanwick, J. P. Esq, Clive House, Winsford

Swindell, S. Blore Esq. Ashbourn

Sykes, Mrs, Grasmere

Talbot, J. G. Esq., 10 Great George Street, Westminster

Tayleur, Miss Harriet, Buntingsdale, Market Draytcn

Taylor,
H J. F. Esq, Kenilworth

Toke, Miss F., Dover

Trafford, Guy, Esq, Nydd Hall, Ripley

Tyrer, R. Esq. Grove House, Mansfield

Tyrer, J, R, D. Esq., Brighton

Tyssen, J. R. D. Esq., Brighton

Uttermare, J. B. Esq:, Langport, Somerset

Vawdry, Rev. D., Darley Dale, Matlock

Walker, J. Severn, Worcester

Ward, Rev. J. W., Rushton, Taunton

Ward, The Lady, Himley Hall, Dudley
Ware, Miss F. Winsham Rectory, Chard

Webster, Rev. M., Hill Parsonage, Sutton Coldfield

Weston, Miss, Westwell Cottage, Tenterden

Whittington. Mrs J. Queen's Parade Place, Bath

Whitworth, R. Esq., The Knowles, Tipper Norwood

Whitty, Captain J. S., Army and Navy Club, London

Wilbraham, Rev. C. P. Audley Vicarage, Staffordshire

Willington, H. Esq, Tamworth

Willington, Rev. H. S: Alban's, Holborn

Wilkinson, Lady, Brynfield House, Swansea

Windsor, The Baroness, 53, Grosvenor Street, London

Winnington, Sir Thos., Bart., M.P. Stanford Court, Wor-
Winwood, Rev H. H. Bath [cester







t. f-Rw. JF, jP. Francis) This view of Eccleshall church will

have a special, though melancholy, interest for many members of the Ham Anastatic Drawing

Society, so closely is that fabric connected with the memory of the late revered !prelate, Bishop

Lonsdale, whose loss has been so deeply felt in the diocese of Lichfield, the diocese in which

this Society had its origin, the good bishop himself being one of the earliest supporters of its

humble endeavours to illustrate British archoeology and topography. In this church alone

Bishop Lonsdale ordained 646 Priests, and 567 Deacons during his long episcopate, and he lies

buried in the north-eastern corner of the churchyard, close by the pathway which he was so

often accustomed to tread on his way from the Palace (Eccleshall Castle) to attend the services

of the parish church.

The church is now undergoing a careful restoration by Mr. Street, but it has been thought

that this sketch of the exterior, as it was till the last year, may not be uninteresting, as connected

with the life and labours of one of the wisest, and most charitable Bishops of this or any other

age of the English church.

The architectural history of Eccleshall church is pretty clearly told by the sketch. It is an

early English building, with considerable additions in the Perpendicular style.

Besides Bishop Lonsdale, the following prelates are known to have been buried in the church,

or churchyard.

Bishop Samson in 1554.

Bishop Bentham in 1578.

Bishop Overton in 160$.

Bishop Wright, who died in Eccleshall Castle, while it was "besieged by rebels under Sir

William Brereton," was buried here in 1643.

Bishop Bowstead's remains were laid in the chancel in 1843.

This church is also celebrated as having afforded refuge to Margaret, Queen of the unfortunate

Henry vi, in 1459. After witnessing, from the lofty tower of Mucklestone church, the defeat

of the royal troops at the battle of Blore Heath, she is said to have escaped on horseback to

Ecclesliall, and there to have sought sanctuary in the church.
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Juw&tH 0f i\t ^mm 0f ftrptftr, (Rev. W. F, Francis.) Although the village
churches of the diocese of Lichfield (comprising Derbyshire, Staffordshire, and a large part
of Shropshire), will not, as a rule, bear comparison with those of some other dioceses, as, e.g.,

with the magnificent village churches of Norfolk, Northamptonshire, Lincolnshire, or Somerset-

shire, yet this ancient diocese has reason to be proud of many of the principal churches of her

large towns, which attest the liberality of former generations of churchmen.

An attempt has been made in the annexed sketch to bring together slight representations of a

few of the most remarkable, and there are many more in the diocese which might well claim to

stand with them, if space permitted.

The most cursory notice must suffice :

1. The graceful cathedral, dedicated to S. Chad, at Lichfield, commenced in 1129. Its total

length is 379 feet, and the height of its central spire 258. The fabric suffered severely in

Cromwell's times, but it was renovated in the episcopate of Bp. Hacket, and re-consecrated in

1669. Recently, in Bp. Lonsdale's episcopate, the interior has been exquisitely restored.

2. S. Mary's, Stafford. It is 178 feet in length, The date of its foundation is unknown,

but there is evidence of its existence in the reign of king John. Its lofty spire was blown

down in 1593, and has not been restored. The whole church had fallen into a sad state, when,
in 1840, it was restored under the superintendence of Mr. Scott, a large proportion of the funds

being contributed by one of the members of this Society.

3. S. Peter's, Wolverhampton, a spacious and beautiful structure. It was a collegiate church

annexed to the deanery of Windsor, by Edward iv. The first foundation of the college dates

from Saxon times. The present church has been thoroughly restored within the last few years.

4. Church of the Holy Trinity, Eccleshall, described in the preceding page.

5. All Saints, Derby, has a fine massive tower, rising to the height of 174 feet, probably

built at the close of the 15th or beginning of the 16th century. An incongruous nave was

added in the 18th century. It was formerly a collegiate church.

6. S. Oswald's, Ashbourne. A singularly elegant building of the 13th century. It was

dedicated in 1241. It contains fine monuments of the Cockayne family.

7. All Saints, Chesterfield, is celebrated for its spire, 230 feet high, so singularly twisted,

that it seems to lean from whichever side it is approached. It is said to have been dedicated in

the year 1232.

8. S. John Baptist, Tideswell. A very fine church of the 14th century. It contains a brass

monument of Eobert Pursglove, (in full episcopal vestments) suffragan bishop of Hull in the year

1579 an interesting monument in the present state of ecclesiastical controversy.

9. S. Wistan, Eepton. A very ancient church, remarkable for its thin spire, 108 feet in

height. Beneath the chancel a curious crypt has been discovered, dating from Saxon times.

10. The Abbey church, Shrewsbury. This fine church, built of red sandstone, was in great

part demolished at the dissolution. The nave and western tower now constitute the church of

Holy-cross parish.









>jmrr{r, ^MmbtfylU. (</".
8. Tyrer, Esq.) This fine church, now parochial, is all

that remains of the ancient priory of Tutbury, It is situated on the slope of the hill on which

still stand the extensive ruins of Tutbury castle, so well known in history as the splendid residence

of John of Gaunt, Duke of Lancaster, and afterwards as the prison-house of Mary, Queen of Scots.

The priory was founded in the eleventh century by Henry de Ferrers, for Benedictine monks.

At the dissolution, it was surrendered by the last prior, Arthur Meverell, a member of the

family of Meverell of Throwley, the ruins of whose venerable manor house still exist in the parish

of Ham. The nave of the abbey church has since that time been used as the parish church of

Tutbury, and is remarkable for its magnificent west door of Norman architecture. The old choir

perished, but the whole church is now being restored, and a chancel added, under the able sup-

erintendence of Mr. Street. A high pointed roofhas replaced the flat leaden one, and now almost

conceals the low massive tower of the ancient priory church.









fttittS 0f ffirflte ^frfag, SfcWtejfct ^. J7. J: FrancisJ These venerable ruins are

very extensive, and deserve far greater attention than they have received from antiquarians and

archaeologists. They are situated in a narrow valley, watered by a rivulet, in the hamlet of

Croxden, about two miles from Alton, in the county of Stafford.

The founder of the abbey was Bertram de Yerdun, who, in 1176, gave some Cistercian monks
in Normandy a piece of ground to build a house for their order. This was not at Croxden, but

three years later they removed to the present site. Bertram de Verdun died and was buried at

Acre, in the Holy Land, on S. Bartholomew's day, 1192. A few years later the abbot of

Croxden was physician to King John, and attended him on his death-bed, at Newark. Tradi-

tion goes on to say that the heart of the unworthy monarch was buried at Croxden.

William de Howton, the sixth abbot, would seem to have been a man of taste and learning,

for he greatly adorned the abbey with "
polished stones," and "purchased of Master Solomon,

archdeacon of Leicester, the whole bible with glossarial notes, for 50 marks sterling." ( Vide

Dugdale's Monasticon.)

The records of all the religious houses of the middle-ages throw great light upon the history

and manners ofthe times, associated as they were with the social and religious, as well as often the

political life of the nation
;
and Croxden is no exception. After several centuries of varying

prosperity and vigour, laxity of discipline and decay, it shared the fate of so many other monas-

teries, in the reign of Henry vin, and was surrendered, with all its lands, to the spoiler's hands.

The west end of the church, with its three lofty lancet windows, is the most conspicuous part of

the building which remains, but there are many architectural details, of great beauty, scattered

among the pigsties and farm buildings of the adjoining farm-house. In fact the outlines of the

ground-plan of the monastic buildings can be pretty clearly traced. The property now belongs

to the earl of Macclesfield, of whom it is not too much to hope, that he will do all in his power

to save from desecration and decay, what remains of this venerable religious house.
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0f &0mas Jf0r*tcr, $P&raI, 5|r0pljirc, f-/^. J". Brooke.) This interesting monu-
mental effigy is situated on the north wall of the chancel of Shiffnal church

; and, according to

the inscription and coat of arms remaining within the arch, is that of Thomas Forster, there des-

cribed as "sometime prior of Wombridge, warden of Tongue, and vicar of Idsall
;

"
all of which

were then existing within a few miles of each other.

Wombridge was a priory, founded about A.D. 1130, for Augustine Canons, by William de

Hadley.

Tongue or Tong, was a college founded A.D. 1411, for a Warden and four Chaplains, the ruins

of which still exist near that church.

Idsall was synonymous with Shiffnal, the two names being used indiscriminately. It was

endowed as a vicarage A.D. 1436, by the master of Battlefield abbey.

This effigy has a further interest attached to it, from Thomas Forster having been a near re-

lation of Anthony Forster, the notorious "
Fire-the-fagot

"
of Sir W. Scott's Kenilworth. Their

paternal estate then lay within the parish of Shiffnal, in the manor of Evelith, or Ivelith, as

recorded in Anthony's epitaph in Cumnor church, where he is described as one "
qui quondam

Iphlethse Salopiensis erat."

This family of Forster took its name from the privilege attached to it, of being the Foresters

of the royal forest of Wrekin, the emblem of which, a hunting horn, is conspicuous in their

armorial bearings. Thomas Forster was buried here, 1526. Anthony Forster was buried at

Cumnor, 1572.









all, Sj)T0p|ke. (Rev. J. Brooke.) This house is situated in the parish of the same

name, about 8 miles south-east of Shrewsbury. It is built of sandstone, and the curious bracket-

ing of the corners of the upper storey give it a character, which deserves notice. The manor is

one of very early date, being mentioned in Domesday, and was then held by one Siward, under

earl Fitz-alan.

The present hall was formerly the residence of Col. Scriven, a staunch adherent of king

Charles i. It is now only used as a farm-house.

The Eoman Watling Street runs through the parish.
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8Uttt (Rev. J. L. Petit.) Between five and six miles from Maid-

stone Bishop Gundulph founded a Benedictine Nunnery at "West Mailing in the year 1000, of

which a small portion of the church remains. The object represented in the sketch is part of a

western tower of rich Norman work, apparently of a much later date than that of the foundation.

Part of the southern transept also remains, and a gateway with some gothic work. The upper

part of the tower is an octagon of the latest perpendicular.









0f tyt &ufylt$im$%\ HlaLC*, IpgMr, $mm. (Miss HasJcer.J This Palace was one

of the earliest residences of the Archbishops of Canterbury. In 1332, a provincial Synod was

held here, when a constitution passed relating to holy-days. In the course of the 14th century,

at least three Archbishops of Canterbury died in this their palace, namely^ Archbishop Meopham,
in 1332

; Archbishop Stratford, in 1348
;
and Archbishop Islip in 1366. Archbishop Islip built

the " Great Hall "
represented in the sketch

;
it is 68 feet long by 38 feet wide. The three

arches which formerly supported the roof are believed to be the only arches of this magnitude

in the kingdom, supported entirely from their own springings. The Palace continued in the

occupation of the Archbishops of Canterbury till the reign of Henry vm, when Archbishop

Cranmer ceded the whole of the domain to the King, who afterwards granted it by letters patent

which bear date January 5th, 1545, to Sir Edward North, chancellor of the Court of Augmenta-

tions. Since then, it has changed hands many times, and in 1864, was purchased by the Dowager

Duchess of Leeds, who has roofed in the " Great Hall," and converted it into a Chapel for Eoman

Catholic worship. The ivy which covered the ruins has been much destroyed, and they no

longer present the same picturesque appearance as in 1863, when the accompanying sketch was

taken.
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wroar&'8 Cjmtttcg, Ikifrprt ^JS/ws Hasker.J This venerable building, on the east side

of South Street, in the town of Bridport, is entered by a high projecting porch. The porch

has a room over it. Of late years it has been occupied by the poor.









)0mer0 Castle, i*te{ra** ^2T. Carpenter, Esq.) The view is taken from the top
of the ruined west walls, looking down on the great court-yard, the Seymour domestic buildings

being in front, the gate tower and S. Margaret's tower on the right.

These buildings are the only portions of the once magnificent structure, which remain in any-

thing like a state of preservation. The castle was originally built by the Norman family of the

Pomeroys ; they chose a most beautiful site, for on two sides of it a steep cliff descends into the

stream below, and the other sides are surrounded with wooded hills.

The earliest portions are a small round tower at the south-east angle, called S. Margaret's

tower, and the south curtain wall. The gate tower is of 15th century work ;
it has two hexago-

nal turrets at the external angles, pierced with arrow slits, and a double portcullis. Over this

is the guard chamber, communicating with the curtain walls, and the dungeons (this room is

shewn on the right of the drawing) ;
it has a curious segmental arcade resting on simple shafts.

Over the guard room was the chapel, though only the shattered side walls, and corbels for the

floor remain of it.

The estates of the Pomeroys, who had been concerned in the Devonshire rebellion, in the time

of Edward vi, were forfeited, and came into the hands of the Protector Somerset, who at once

erected a great pile of domestic buildings comprising banquetting and reception rooms, kitchens,

offices, &c.
; they were then fitted up and furnished in a most gorgeous manner, and for several

years the Seymour family lived here in great state. Sir Edward Seymour, lived here in the reign

of James n.

The whole castle has now fallen into decay, and is almost overgrown with ivy. It is still

in the possession of the Dukes of Somerset.







BERRYEPOMER Q Y:CA&TLS :DVOK



Cjmr4, S^xrns^iw. (Rev. W. F. Francis.) This magnificent church is too well

known to require description. The sketch of Berry Pomeroy Castle, below, will supply some

supplementary details of that interesting ruin, which has been already described on the preceding

page.









tmt {mr4, (fcttttStejrir*. (Rev, J. L. Petit.) This village is about five or six

miles east of Cheltenham. Part of the church is early English, if not of an older date. The

tower which is perpendicular, is not of the full width of the south transept, so that the south-

western angle rests on a detached pier which forms a remarkable and very picturesque feature

in the interior. There is some good medieval domestic work in this and the adjacent parish of

Whittington.









!p0tts, (R. Tyrer, Esq.) Mansfield-Woodhouse is situated about a

mile and a half to the north of Mansfield. The church, which is dedicated to S. Edmund, was

probably built about the year 1304, after the destruction of the village and church by fire. The

exterior, with the exception of the tower, has been lately restored, but the interior pillars and

chancel arch remain untouched. The tower is chiefly remarkable for its curious octagonal spire,

It contains a peal of four bells, and a ' sanctus' bell.









g00r of %>tbtmll C|mr4, (& Tyrer, Esq.J Teversall is a small village on the

western border of the county of Nottingham. The church is a curious ancient structure, and

contains some fine wood carving, and monuments of the Molyneux family. The south door,

which is of Saxon, or very early Norman date, is protected by an Early-English porch, and is in

good preservation. It appears to have been taken to pieces at some time, and the stones placed

in different positions from those they formerly occupied. The diagonal carving on the stone

running round the arch is curious, the same design being carved on each stone, whatever may be

its size.









t-iJ0tt8.es, UJattsMfr, (J- 8. Tyrer^ Esq.) These curious dwelling-places lie at the

eastern extremity of the town. They are cut out of the sandstone rock, and are in different

stages of decay : some few are still inhabited. Kock-houses are found in various parts of the

county, particularly at Sneinton. The rock on which Nottingham castle is built, is pierced with

passages and chambers.









feat Jtejmm, ^2>. W. F. Francis.J This venerable thorn stands at the

entrance of Saxham Park, one of its branches overhanging an ancient church path. John

Eldred, with whose name it is associated, was an alderman of the city of London, and purchased

the manor and advowson of Saxham Magna from Sir Thomas Kytson, in 1597. Eldred was an

enterprising Levant merchant, and is said to have been the first who brought nutmegs to England.

His voyage to Tripoli in 1583 and his travels thence to Babylon, are described in Hackluyt's Col-

lection of Voyages, torn. 2, fol. 268. He died in 1632, and is buried in the chancel of Great

Saxham, where there is a most interesting painted bust of him, supposed to have been taken from

life. His estates devolved upon his son and heir apparent, Sir Kevet Eldred, created a baronet

in 1641.
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SttfaJL (Rev. R. S. Fox.J The Church of S. Peter, at Thurston, 5 miles east of

Bury S. Edmunds, was one of the few specimens of the Decorative period in that part of Suffolk.

At midnight on the 18th of March, 1860, the tower fell to the ground, pulling down with it

a considerable portion of the nave and aisles. The accompanying view is from a sketch made a

day or two after its fall. During the following year the church was rebuilt by subscription, the

style of architecture of the ancient edifice, being, with very trifling exceptions, copied in the

restored church.









0f Imfutfr. ^7".
& JFto, ^^ The village of Orleton is situated

between Leominster and Ludlow. The church of S. George consists of chancel, nave, north

porch, and a western tower, surmounted by the characteristic shingled spire of Herefordshire.

The original nave was probably of the same width and height as the chancel, the weather mould-

ing of the old roof against the east wall of the tower still remaining beneath the present one. It

was rebuilt on a larger scale in the 14th century, and contains some good reticulated windows

of that period. The chancel and tower are first pointed, there being two single lancets at the

east end.

The nave and spire were thoroughly restored in 1864-65. On removing the plaster and white-

wash, several coats of decorative painting were found in successive layers on the walls. In the

chancel are several monuments of the Blount family, who still own property in the parish, and

formerly resided at the Court, a picturesque timber house, apparently dating from the early part

of the 17th century, and containing in one of the rooms on the first floor a good stone chimney-

piece. Here was born Thomas Blount, the antiquary ;
and this was likewise the native parish of

Adam de Orleton, successively Bishop of Hereford, Worcester and "Winchester. He sided with

the Barons and Queen Isabella, and wrote the celebrated letter to the keepers of Edward n, at

Berkeley Castle, "Edwardum regem occidere nolite timere bonum est."









0US05, WZamtAtttfyiu. (J. S. Walker, Esq.) "The Lowe" in the parish of Lin-

dridge, near Tenbury, is a good example of the half-timbered houses once so common in this

district. In one of the rooms, now used as a kitchen, is a ceiling with richly moulded beams
;

and in the upper part of the porch, now considerably out of the perpendicular, the timber framing
is more ornamentally disposed than usual. The house was for many generations the residence

of an ancient family bearing the same name, one of whom, Arthur Lowe, became Bishop of 8.

Asaph, in 1433, and died in 1467, Bishop of Eochester, where he lies buried.

The last male descendant died in 1724, and left this clause in his will : "Item, I will that my
house at the Lowe, wherein I now live, being the ancient seat of my ancestors, be from time to

time kept up and repaired by whoever shall be seised of my estate at the Lowe, as need shall

require ;
but by no means to be pulled down or demolished.^

Wyre Piddle is a chapelry in the parish of Madbury, and situated about a mile eastward of

Pershore. The house represented in the accompanying drawing, stands on the east side of the

chapel yard, and has been converted into two cottages. Here is a good overhanging gable, and an

ogee-headed doorway, now blocked up, similar to the north doorway of the timber nave of Bes-

ford church, in the same neighbourhood.
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JUmS S0tt&eJ$, CjttJSter. (Rev. J. Broofte.) This building, although at first sight, perhaps,

plain and unattractive, when viewed with regard to its architectural proportions and details, is

well worthy of notice, if not imitation, as shewing what can be done with mere red brick, when

judiciously disposed. It is situated in Duke-street, in the parish of S. Olave, and was built by
one Kobert Harvey, mayor of Chester, in 1639, and comprises six almshouses.









(Rev . W. F. Francis.J In that curious book, Martin 1

's Natural History

of England, it is said of Chester : "Its antiquity may still be seen by its wrinkled face, in many

particulars." The annexed sketch pourtrays one of these wrinkles. Year by year they are dis-

appearing before the "improvements" of modern architecture, but the antiquarian will still find

much to console him in the streets of the ancient city of Chester.









f8rtI*p0I C{m|r, ittrjram. (^. J. L. Petit.} The sketch represents this fine old church

as it appeared nearly 20 years ago. The style is mostly early-English ;
the large buttresses of the

tower add much to the picturesque effect of the building, The church is dedicated to 8. Hilda,

and occupies an elevated site at the south-east end of the town.









fatle, Sfftttjf SKates. ^Ckp Whittij.)
" This magnificent fortress may fairly take

its place among the noblest military structures in the kingdom, and its historic interest, as the

seat of the famous earldom to which it gives its name, is fully in keeping with its architectural

merit. The grouping of the whole when seen at high tide from the bridge, or from the high

ground on the opposite side is inexpressibly grand ;
the natural position, the rock washed by the

winding inlets of the haven, the castle itself growing out of the rock, so that it is hard to define

the exact boundaries of art and nature
;
the windows of the hall, and the entrance to the cavern

below, uniting to produce the appearance of an enormous water-gate, and the vast round tower

forming the crown of the whole, combine to make a most indelible impression on the mind, and

at once suggest a comparison invidious enough in an sesthetical view, with the works of modern

defensive art at Pater (Pembroke Dockyard.)" Vide Hudson Turner's "Domestic Architecture

in England," Vol. 2.
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itt itormiW&g. (#>. J- L. Petit.) This fine rain may be visited fron S.

Lo, or from Coutances
;
but the excursion from either would occupy the best part of a day. It

stands in a deep wooded valley on the bank of a trout stream, and the road to it is rough and

precipitous. It will be seen by the sketch, that a considerable portion of the church still remains,

namely the central tower, transept, choir and part of the nave, which appears to have been without

regular aisles. The date is probably towards the middle of the 14th century, parts however may
be earlier. Some of the monastic buildings also remain and are used for farming purposes.









{mtt{r 0f S. ttn, S0r|*S, itt toraittt (Rev. J. L. Petit.) This building appears to

belong chiefly to the 12th century, though there may be earlier portions. Its design and con-

struction are unique; the nave, consisting oftwo square compartments, is roofed with tall octagonal

pyramids of stone, westward of these is a tower with a steeple and western porch ;
to the east is

also a tower with a spire and an apsidal chancel flanked with smaller apses. The transepts are

short and have a lean-to-roof. The arches of construction are mostly pointed ;
those of the doors

and windows are round. There is a fine Romanesque western doorway, much enriched with the

ornaments of the style ;
also a font of elaborate workmanship. The castellated building on the

right hand of the sketch contains the beautiful recumbent effigy of Agnes Sorel, who was born

1400, in the neighbouring chateau of Fromonteau.

The whole town of Loches, with its castle associated, asit is, with the memory of many dismal

tragedies, is one of the most picturesque in Touraine.







SAUTCELUAH. .



(Mrs. Beckett.) This unique piece of plate is in the collection of

Mr. John Eainey, Bath. Connoisseurs have considered it the work of Cellini, although it bears

the Amsterdam mark, but certainly it is not later than the end of the 16th, or the very beginning
of the 17th century. The following description is copied from the catalogue of the S. Kensington
Loan Museum, where it was exhibited :

" Silver triangular Salt-cellar, of three heights, open at the

sides, the horizontal divisions forming elegant canopies ;
in the centre of the lower division is a

beautiful gilded statuette of Hope kneeling on an anchor
;
the summit of this most original and

elegant piece is surmounted by a small gilded statuette of Faith. The punch marks are the three

saltire crosses of Amsterdam and the letter H. Height 12 inches."







ETRUSCAN VASE. C.S.B





ETRUSCAN VASE . C.S.B



(Mrs. Beckett.J This remarkable vase pf Terra Cotta, now in the Bristol

Museum, was found in a tomb at Canosa in Apulia, near the site of the battle of Cannae, and

was purchased from the collection of Eaifaelle Baroni at Naples. It is of great antiquity, its date

being most probably 200 years B. C. The form is that of a wine skin. The drawings were

made from photographs taken by the Eev. "W. Whiting.
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TUTBURY CHURCH, STAFFORDSHIRE ........................ J. S. Tyrer Esq
CROXDEN ABBEY, DITTO .............................. Rev. W. F. Francis

TOMB OF THOMAS FORSTER, SHIFFNAL, SHROPSHIRE ............... Rev. J. Brooke
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Rev. W. F. Francis
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SEVENHAMPTON CHURCH ... . .................... Rev. J. L. Petit

MANSFIELD WOODHOUSE, NOTTS ........................ ^- Tyrcr Esq
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: Jf0mp
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